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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

MASHAYILA SAYERS, BRITTNEY Case No. 7:21-cv-07933-VB
TINKER, JENNIFER MONACHINO,
KIMBERLY MULLINS, HILDA MICHELLE Hon. Vincent L. Briccetti
MURPHREE, and AMANDA JIMENEZ, on
behalf of themselves and all others similarly
situated,

Plaintiffs,
V.

ARTSANA USA, INC,,

Defendant.

DECLARATION OF ANTONIO VOZZOLO IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFFS’
MOTIONS FOR FINAL APPROVAL OF CLASS ACTION SETTLEMENT, AWARD OF
ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND EXPENSES., AND APPROVAL OF INCENTIVE AWARDS

I, Antonio Vozzolo, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, hereby declare as follows:

1. I am an attorney at law licensed to practice in the State of New York. [ am a
member of the bar of this Court, and I am the founder of Vozzolo LLC, one of the Class Counsel
appointed by this Court in its January 23, 2023 Order preliminarily approving the proposed
settlement of this litigation. I actively participated in all aspects of this action since inception and
am fully familiar with the proceedings being resolved. I am fully familiar with the facts contained
herein based upon my personal knowledge and the books and records kept in the ordinary course
of Vozzolo LLC’s business and, if called as a witness, I could and would testify competently
thereto.

2. I 'make this declaration in support of Plaintiffs’ Motions for Final Approval of Class
Action Settlement and for Attorneys’ Fees, Costs, Expenses, and Incentive Awards filed herewith.

3. Attached hereto as Exhibit 1 is a true and correct copy of the firm resume of

Vozzolo LLC.
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LITIGATION HISTORY

4. Beginning in January 2021, Class Counsel commenced a pre-suit investigation of
Defendant’s practices related to its Chicco-brand KidFit booster seats.

5. On February 19, 2021, counsel for Plaintiff Amanda Jimenez served pre-suit notice
and demand for corrective action on Artsana, pursuant to U.C.C. § 2-607(3)(a), concerning
breaches of express and implied warranties, for violation of the Magnuson-Moss Warranty Act,
15 U.S.C. §§ 2301, et seq. and New York General Business Law (“GBL”) §§ 349-50.

6. On April 22, 2021, Plaintiffs Mashayila Sayers, Kimberly Mullins, Jennifer
Monachino, Brittney Tinker, and Hilda Murphee filed a putative class action against Artsana in
the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, captioned Sayers et al. v. Artsana USA, Inc., Case No. 5:21-
cv-01876-JMG, ECF No. 1 (E.D. Pa.) (the “Sayers” action).

7. The Sayers complaint asserted nationwide counts for violation of the Magnuson-
Moss Warranty Act, unjust enrichment, and violation of Pennsylvania’s Unfair Trade Practices
and Consumer Protection Law, as well as counts for breach of express warranty, breach of implied
warranty, and violation of consumer protection acts under the specific laws of Colorado, Florida,
[llinois, Maryland, and Texas, that related to, inter alia, alleged misrepresentations on advertising,
labeling, or marketing concerning the minimum weight requirement for and side-impact collision
protection provided by Artsana’s KidFit booster seats.

8. The Sayers complaint asserted these claims on behalf of a putative nationwide class
of consumers, as well as Colorado, Florida, Illinois, Maryland, and Texas classes of consumers.

0. On July 28, 2021, Artsana filed a motion to dismiss (Sayers, ECF No. 18) and a
motion to strike portions of Plaintiffs’ complaint (Sayers, ECF No. 19). Plaintiffs filed their

opposition to Artsana’s motions on September 3, 2021, and the motions were fully briefed on
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September 22, 2021. See Sayers, ECF Nos. 27, 31.

10. On September 23, 2021, Plaintiff Amanda Jimenez filed the instant class action
lawsuit against Artsana in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York,
Case No. 7:21-cv-07933-VB (S.D.N.Y.), which asserted counts of deceptive acts or practices
under New York General Business Law section 349, false advertising under New York General
Business Law section 350, fraud, unjust enrichment, breach of implied warranty, and breach of
express warranty, that related to, infer alia, alleged misrepresentations on advertising, labeling, or
marketing concerning the minimum weight requirement for and side-impact collision protection
provided by Artsana’s KidFit booster seats.

11.  Ms. Jimenez asserted claims on behalf of a putative nationwide class of consumers,
as well as a subclass of consumers that purchased Artsana’s KidFit booster seats in New York.

12.  Prior to initiating litigation, Class Counsel extensively researched Artsana, its
history of selling booster seats, and its marketing representations related to the booster seats over
time. Class Counsel also reviewed publicly available independent testing results for Artsana
booster seats and discussed the performance of booster seats in side-impact collisions with
potential expert consultants.

13. Class Counsel also carefully reviewed a December 10, 2020 Staff Report of the
House of Representatives Subcommittee on Economic and Consumer Policy entitled: “Booster
Seat Manufacturers Give Parents Dangerous Advice: Misleading Claims, Meaningless Safety
Testing, and Unsafe Recommendations to Parents About When They Can Transition Their
Children from Car Seats to Booster Seats.” In addition, on July 14, 2021, counsel for Jiminez
submitted a Freedom of Information Act request to the National Highway Traffic Safety

Administration to uncover additional information related to Defendant’s marketing and testing of
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Chicco-branded “KidFit” booster seats.

THE CLASS SETTLEMENT

A. History of Settlement Negotiations

14.  During the Sayers motion to dismiss briefing, the Parties initiated discussions about
the possibility of opening settlement negotiations. The Parties in both cases agreed to engage in
mediation with Judge Diane Welsh, a retired Magistrate Judge of the United States District Court
for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and exchanged mediation submissions that helped to
clarify the factual and legal issues. Judge Welsh is a well-respected mediator who has substantial
experience in mediating class actions and other complex civil litigation.

15. On September 30, 2021, the Parties participated in a full-day mediation facilitated
by Judge Welsh and were able to make substantial progress, including reaching an agreement on
the scope of the Class (a time frame of April 22, 2015 through December 31,2021 and a nationwide
Class) and the substantive monetary terms of the Class benefits. The Parties, however, did not
resolve the scope of prospective non-monetary benefits. Accordingly, the Parties gave the Sayers
court and this Court notice of the settlement and requested a stay of proceedings to facilitate further
discussions on the remaining elements of the Settlement.

16. On November 8, 2021, the Parties participated in a second mediation with Judge
Welsh regarding non-monetary benefits. Although the Parties did not finalize the scope of the
non-monetary benefits at that session, the Parties engaged in numerous phone conferences, with
each other and Judge Welsh, regarding prospective non-monetary benefits and the precise terms
of the Stipulation of Settlement. The Parties exchanged numerous drafts of the Stipulation of
Settlement until they reached final agreement on both the non-monetary benefits and all the terms

of the Stipulation of Settlement except for attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses.
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17.  After reaching agreement on the Class monetary benefits and the non-monetary
benefits, the Parties addressed attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses in phone conferences and in a
June 6, 2022 mediation, also with Judge Welsh. The Parties ultimately were unable to reach
agreement on an amount for attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses but did agree on a process and
schedule for further negotiations.

18. The Parties participated in additional mediation sessions with Judge Welsh on
August 18, 2023, and August 28, 2023 to develop a process for addressing any deficiencies in
claims submitted throughout the Claims Period.

19.  Although the August 18, 2023, and August 28, 2023 mediation sessions were
initially scheduled to discuss Class Counsel’s request for attorney’s fees, costs, and expenses, no
such discussion occurred.

20.  Prior to and during the course of the mediations and other negotiations, the Parties
exchanged information and informal discovery to allow the Parties and their counsel to evaluate
claims and potential defenses. Plaintiffs received data and information concerning manufacturer’s
suggested retail prices, total sales nationwide on an annual basis from 2017 through 2021, total
sales for each Plaintiff’s state of residence on an annual basis from 2017 through 2021, total sales
for all 50 states for the period April 22, 2015 through December 31, 2021, estimates of Class
Members’ average purchase price, total revenue received by Artsana, the number of people who
registered their booster seats, and the number of emails of potential Class Members in Artsana’s
possession. The exchanged information ensured that the Parties engaged in informed settlement
discussions with the result that negotiations were hard-fought.

21. In the course of reaching the Settlement, the Parties concluded that a nationwide

settlement, encompassing claims of similarly situated purchasers of Artsana’s booster seats, was
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an appropriate resolution. Additionally, during the negotiations, Plaintiffs obtained an agreement
from Artsana to expand the timeframe of the Class covered by the Settlement so that it now extends
from April 22, 2015 through December 31, 2021, allowing consumers who purchased Artsana
booster seats more than six years before the filing of the class action to participate in the
Settlement. In addition, consumers who purchased Artsana booster seats up to eight months after
the litigation commenced can also participate in the class recovery. In the absence of the
Settlement, there would be a substantial risk that any Class ultimately certified would be
substantially truncated.

22.  Following agreement on the terms of the Stipulation of Settlement, the Parties
engaged in extensive negotiations regarding the Exhibits to the Stipulation of Settlement, which
include a proposed preliminary approval order, proposed final order, proposed final judgment,
claim forms, notices, and a settlement administration protocol.

23.  From the Plaintiffs’ perspective, these negotiations were critical to ensure that the
Class Members received effective notice, that they were adequately advised regarding the terms
of the Settlement, and that they would be able to file claims with ease.

24. The Parties agreed to have the Angeion Group serve as the Settlement
Administrator because of their extensive experience administrating class action settlements.
Working with the Angeion Group, the Parties negotiated (a) the content and format for an on-line
Claim Form and a paper Claim Form, (b) the content of the Long Form and Summary class notices,
and (c) the Settlement Administration Protocol. The Parties also negotiated the proposed
preliminary and final approval orders and a proposed Final Judgment.

25. Finally, on January 17, 2023, after many months of continued, contentious arms’

length negotiations via telephone conference—and with the assistance of Judge Welsh—the
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Parties ultimately executed the Stipulation of Settlement. The parties moved for preliminary
approval the same day, which the Court granted on January 23, 2023.

26. The Parties agreed to the terms of the Settlement through experienced counsel who
possessed all the information necessary to evaluate the case, determine all contours of the proposed
class, and reach a fair and reasonable compromise after negotiating the terms of the Settlement at
arms’-length and with the assistance of a neutral mediator.

217. There are no separate agreements to be identified pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil
Procedure 23(e)(3) between Plaintiffs and their counsel and Artsana other than the Settlement
Agreement.

B. Settlement Benefits

28.  Plaintiffs and Class Counsel recognize that despite our belief in the strength of
Plaintiffs’ claims, and Plaintiffs’ and the Class’s ability to ultimately secure an award of damages,
the expense, duration, and complexity of protracted litigation would be substantial and the outcome
of trial uncertain. Thus, the Settlement secures a more proximate and more certain monetary
benefit to the Class than continued litigation.

29. Plaintiffs and Class Counsel are also mindful that absent a settlement, the success
of Defendant’s various defenses in this case could deprive the Plaintiffs and the Settlement Class
Members of any potential relief whatsoever.

30. Defendant is also represented by highly experienced attorneys who have made clear
that absent a settlement, they were prepared to continue their vigorous defense of this case,
including by moving for summary judgment should the motion to dismiss have been denied.
Plaintiffs and Class Counsel are also aware that Defendant would continue to challenge liability

as well as assert a number of defenses, including (i) whether common proof can establish
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Defendant’s marketing claims resulted in damages for Class Members; (i1) whether a nationwide
class could be certified; and (iii) whether this Court has personal jurisdiction over the claims of
non-New York class members. Defendant’s success on any one of those issues could have
precluded many if not most Class Members from recovering anything. Defendant would have also
vigorously contested the certification of a litigation class, including pursuing an appeal of the
Court’s class certification order pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(f). And, even success at class
certification would not preclude a victory for Defendant on the merits at summary judgment, at
trial, or on appeal. Thus, there was a significant risk of achieving no recovery for the class or,
substantial delay in obtaining a favorable final resolution of this matter.

31.  Plaintiffs and Class Counsel believe that the monetary relief provided by the
Settlement weighs heavily in favor of finding that the Settlement is fair, reasonable, and adequate,
and well within the range of approval.

32. The Settlement benefits are consistent with the goals of the Class based on their
claims in this action: reimbursement of a substantial portion of the amount Class Members paid in
reliance on Artsana’s misrepresentations together with significant non-monetary benefits
educating past and current purchasers of Artsana booster seats, including Class Members who wish
to be able to buy Artsana booster seats in the future.

33. Artsana has agreed to pay Class members $50 per booster seat if they have proof
of purchase, which is defined very broadly. The manufacturer’s suggested retail price (“MSRP”)
at the time of the Settlement in 2021 ranged from $99.99 to $149.99. Since the Class period runs
from April 22, 2015 through December 31, 2021, Class Members with proof of purchase will be
receiving between 33% and 50% of the MSRP in 2021 regardless of when they purchased the

booster seat. In addition, in agreeing to the Settlement amount, we were aware that many, if not
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most, consumers do not pay the MSRP when purchasing a booster seat. Consequently, the Class
Members’ percentage recovery of their purchase price is likely higher than 33% to 50%.

34. Class members without proof of purchase may recover $25 per booster seat if they
are able to provide certain basic information about their purchase. In Class Counsel’s experience,
consumer protection class action settlements often do not provide any recovery for potential Class
Members who do not have proof of purchase or, if the settlement does, it is for a lesser amount.
Here, Class Members without proof of purchase can recover between 17% and 25% of the
MSRP—and likely a higher percentage of their actual purchase price.

35. Moreover, the Settlement does not limit the number of booster seats for which Class
Members may file a claim. More importantly, the Settlement has no cap on the total amount that
Artsana will ultimately pay out pursuant to the Settlement. Since Artsana sold hundreds of
thousands of booster seats, the ultimate recovery by Class Members could be substantial and there
will be no proration of any Class Member’s recovery. Between April 22, 2015, and December 31,
2021, a total of 874,538 Eligible Products were sold in the United States.

36. Given the number of Eligible Products sold during the Class Period, the
Settlement’s monetary value is at least $24,735, 203.20 based on the relief made available to Class
Members. Specifically, this includes: (1) the number of Eligible Products sold during the Class
Period (874,538) multiplied by $25 per Eligible Product, which amounts to $21,863,450;
(2) approximately $612,753.20 for Notice and Administration Costs, (3) anticipated incentive
awards to Plaintiffs totaling $9,000, and (4) Class Counsel’s requested $2,250,000 for Attorneys’
Fees and Expenses.

37. In addition to the monetary relief, Artsana agreed to modify its consumer-facing

website to include a link to an informational video providing accurate information about safe
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weight, height, and age requirements for Artsana’s booster seats. In addition, Artsana will be
adding an overlay of text to a Facebook video concerning Chicco booster seats, stating that
NHTSA “recommends that you keep your child in a forward-facing car seat with a harness and
tether until he or she reaches the top height or weight limit allowed by your car seat’s
manufacturer.” Lastly, Artsana will create a new educational video discussing the subject of
transitioning a child to a booster seat, including the minimum requirements for safe use of a booster
seat. This video will include either an audio version of the Facebook video overlay regarding the
NHTSA recommendation or the same visual overlay. The new video will appear on Artsana’s
product video page.

C. Class Notice and Settlement Administration

38. Since the Court granted preliminary approval, Class Counsel has worked with the
Settlement Administrator, Angeion, to carry out the Court-ordered notice plan. Specifically, Class
Counsel helped compile and review the contents of the required notice to State Attorney Generals
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1715, reviewed the final claim and notice forms, and reviewed and tested
the settlement website before it launched live. Class Counsel has also been performing weekly
status checks in order to monitor and oversee the proper functioning of the claims process.

39. As detailed in the accompanying Declaration of Steven Weisbrot (“Weisbrot
Decl.”), the Court-ordered notice plan has been carried out in its entirety and reached an
estimated 86.77% of targeted Class Members. Weisbrot Decl. 99 23-24.

40. After extensive notice of the Settlement, no Class Members have submitted
objections and only 3 opt-outs have been received to date. Similarly, there have been no objections
by the Attorney General of the United States nor any of the attorney generals of each state where

Class Members reside who were notified in accordance with the Class Action Fairness Act of 2005

10
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(“CAFA”), 28 U.S.C. § 1715(b).

D. Attorneys’ Fees, Expenses, Costs, and Incentive Awards

41. The Parties engaged in negotiations of attorneys’ fees, expenses, and costs and
incentive awards only after agreement was reached on relief for the Class to ensure that Settlement
Class Members’ benefits were not impacted by negotiations over attorneys’ fees, costs, and
expenses and incentive awards. This procedure is in accordance with the Manual for Complex
Litigation, Third § 30.42 (Fed. Judicial Ctr. 1995), which states: “Separate negotiation of the class
settlement before an agreement on fees is generally preferable to avoid conflicts of interest between
the attorneys and their clients[.]” Thus, the issue of fees did not cloud other aspects of the
negotiation. The Parties have been unable to reach any agreement regarding payment of attorneys’
fees, expenses, and costs but have agreed to participate in an additional mediation session with
Judge Welsh on August 28, 2023.

42. Class Counsel have dedicated significant time and resources to litigating this case
on behalf of the Settlement Class. Their legal services were performed on a wholly contingent fee
basis. Therefore, counsel has assumed the risk of non-payment in litigating and prosecuting this
action and have at all times ensured that sufficient resources were made available.

43. Class Counsel separately move for an award of attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses
in the amount of $2,250,000, including $20,422.43 in litigation expenses, payment of which will
be separate and apart from the monetary relief afforded to the Settlement Class.

44. Class Counsel’s $2,250,000 fee request is only 9.1% of the total estimated value of
the Settlement ($24,735,203.20). See supra 4 36. This Settlement value is a conservative estimate
of the maximum amount Artsana is liable for under the Settlement given that it does not account

for any claims submitted with proof of purchase, for which claimants are entitled to $50 per

11
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Eligible Product. Moreover, this percentage does not take into account the value of the non-
monetary benefits provided for under the Settlement.

45.  Additionally, even considering the Settlement value based on the approximate
value of reported claims awaiting confirmation of validity, Class Counsel’s fee request is only
33.5% of the Settlement value calculated on that basis. Class Counsel conservatively calculated
this percentage as follows: (1) 153,244 claims awaiting confirmation of validity as of July 21,2023
multiplied by $25 per claim = $3,831,100; (2) estimated notice and administration expenses:
$612,753.20; (3) anticipated incentive awards to Plaintiffs: $9,000; (4) requested amount of fees,
costs and expenses: $2,250,000. This is a total of $6,702,853.20 ($3,831,100 + $612,753.20 +
$9,000 + 2,250,000 = $6,702,853.20), amounting to 33.5% of the value of the Settlement based
on claims reported by the Settlement Administrator to Class Counsel that are awaiting
confirmation of validity ($2,250,000/$6,702,853.20 = 33.5%).

46. Since Class Counsel began investigating this matter in January of 2021 through
August 27, 2023, Class Counsel expended 1,184.5 hours in this case. Class Counsel’s total
lodestar in this case, based on current billing rates, is $1,320,040.50. Accordingly, the fee request
of $2,250,000 represents a multiplier of 1.7 to the combined lodestar of Class Counsel. Class
Counsel’s fee request is within the range of fees customarily awarded in similar actions and is
justified in light of the benefit conferred on the Settlement Class, the risks undertaken, and the
quality and extent of the services performed, as set forth herein and in the accompanying moving
papers.

47. All of the time Class Counsel is claiming was reasonably devoted to advancing and
protecting the interests of our clients and the public in this case. This time does not include any

time spent on fee-related work.

12
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48. Class Counsel’s hours were recorded in a manner consistent with accepted practices
related to contemporaneous time and billing procedures, and counsel has exercised billing
discretion where appropriate. By proceeding with this case on a contingent fee basis, Class
Counsel were incentivized to conduct our work as efficiently as possible.

49.  Asis the general practice of most law firms, each of the attorneys and support staff
at Vozzolo LLC are responsible for keeping track of their billable time. I have personally reviewed
all of Vozzolo LLC’s time entries and have used billing judgment and discretion to ensure that
duplicative or unnecessary time has been excluded and that only time reasonably devoted to the
litigation has been included. The time and descriptions displayed in the firm’s billing records were
regularly and contemporaneously recorded by me and other timekeepers/employees of the firm
and have been maintained in the computerized records at Vozzolo LLC.

50.  Attached hereto as Exhibit 2 is a summary of Vozzolo LLC’s total time incurred
through August 27, 2023. Attached hereto as Exhibit 3 are my firm’s detailed billing diaries for
this matter.

51. Detailed billing records for Milberg Coleman Bryson Phillips Grossman PLLC
(“Milberg”) and Bursor & Fisher, P.A. (“Bursor & Fisher”) are attached to the Declarations of
Martha A. Geer (“Geer Declaration”) and Alec M. Leslie (“Leslie Declaration) in Support of
Plaintiffs’ Motions for Final Approval of Class Action Settlement and for Attorneys’ Fees, Costs,
Expenses, and Incentive Awards, respectively.

52. Based upon my experience in complex consumer class action litigation similar to
this case, it is my opinion that the hourly rates charged by the attorneys performing work here are
within the range of market rates charged for similar work performed by attorneys of equivalent

experience, skill, and expertise. The Supreme Court and other courts have held that the use of

13
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current rates is proper since such rates compensate for inflation and the loss of use of funds. See
Missouri v. Jenkins, 491 U.S. 274, 283-84 (1989).

53. In addition to the time enumerated above, I estimate that Class Counsel will incur
an additional 150-200 hours of future work in connection with the fairness hearing, coordinating
with the settlement administrator, monitoring settlement administration, and responding to Class
member inquiries and possible objections. Future work relating to monitoring settlement
administration is likely to be substantial in this case, given the potential for a claims deficiency
process and the fact that the class filing period extends at least through December 11, 2023.

54. Class Counsel also incurred out-of-pocket litigation costs and expenses that were
advanced and carried throughout the litigations. Class Counsel incurred $20,422.43 in out-of-
pocket expenses in connection with the prosecution of this case. Vozzolo LLC specifically
expended $216.62 in out-of-pocket expenses. Attached as Exhibit 4 is an itemized list of Vozzolo
LLC’s expenses by category. Attached as Exhibit 3 to the Geer Declaration and Exhibit 4 to the
Leslie Declaration are charts showing out-of-pocket expense incurred in this action by Milberg
and by Bursor & Fisher, respectively. The actual expenses incurred in the prosecution of this
action are reflected on the computerized accounting records of Class Counsel. Those accounting
records are prepared by accounting staff from receipts and check records and accurately reflect all
actual expenses incurred. Upon request, we will provide the Court with copies of documentation
for each of the costs itemized above. In the same manner that Class Counsel were incentivized to
conduct work as efficiently as possible, so too were we incentivized to be extremely judicious in
our approach to expending funds.

55. I have general familiarity with the range of hourly rates typically charged by

plaintiffs’ class action counsel in New York, this District and throughout the United States, both

14
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on a current basis and historically.

56. This familiarity has been obtained in several ways: (1) by litigating attorneys’ fee
applications; (2) by discussing fees with other class action attorneys; (3) by obtaining declarations
regarding prevailing market rates filed by other attorneys seeking fees; and (4) by reviewing
attorneys’ fee applications and awards in other cases, as well as surveys and articles on attorneys’
fees in legal newspapers and treatises. The information I have gathered shows that Class Counsel’s
rates are in line with the non-contingent market rates charged by attorneys of reasonably
comparable experience, skill, and reputation for reasonably comparable class action work.

57.  In fact, comparable hourly rates have been found reasonable by various courts in

New York for reasonably comparable services, including:

e Laydon v. Mizuho Bank, Ltd., No. 1:12-cv-03419-GBD, ECF No. 837 (S.D.N.Y.
Dec. 7, 2017) (approving partner rates of $875 to $975 and associate rates of $325
to $600, see ECF No. 817).

o In re Credit Default Swaps Antitrust Litig., 2016 WL 2731524, at *17 (S.D.N.Y.
April 26, 2016) (approving partner rates of $834 to $1,125 and associate rates of
$411 to $714, see ECF No. 482);

e In re Platinum & Palladium Commod. Litig., Slip Op. No.10cv3617, 2015 U.S.
Dist. LEXIS 98691, at *13 (S.D.N.Y. July 7, 2015) (approving billing rates of $950
and $905 per hour and referring to a recent National Law Journal survey yielding
an average hourly partner billing rate of $982 in New York.)

e [n re Bear Stearns Cos., Inc. Sec., Deriv., & ERISA Litig., 909 F. Supp. 2d 259,
271-72 (S.D.N.Y. 2012) (approving fee award based on hourly rates ranging from
$275 to $650 for associates and $725 to $975 for partners, see ECF No. 302-5 in
Case No. 1:08-md-01963-RWS)

o [nre Merrill Lynch & Co. Inc., Research Reports Sec. Litig., No. 02 MDL 1484
(JFK), 2007 WL 313474, at *22 (S.D.N.Y. Feb. 1, 2007) (approving billing rates
up to $850 per hour.)

e (ity of Providence v. Aeropostale, Inc., No. 11-Civ-7132 (CM), 2014 WL 1883494,
at *13 (S.D.N.Y. May 9, 2014), aff’d sub nom. Arbuthnot v. Pierson, 2015 WL
3604407 (2d Cir. June 10, 2015) (approving billing rates of attorneys in New York
firms ranging from $335 to $875 per hour.)

15
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o [n re Hi-Crush Partners L.P. Sec. Litig., No. 12-8557, 2014 WL 7323417, at *14
(S.D.N.Y. Dec. 19, 2014) (approving hourly billing rates ranging from $425 to
$825 for attorneys.)

58.  Inaddition to my general familiarity with market rates and my review of the hourly

rates claimed by other class action counsel, my conclusion that Vozzolo LLC’s hourly rates are

reasonable is bolstered by the following authorities, including by prior fee applications I have

submitted on behalf of Vozzolo LLC and/or my prior position, including three (3) in this District:

In Fried v. JPMorgan Chase & Co., et al., No. 2:15-cv-02512, ECF No. 88 (D. N.J. July
25, 2019), the Court approved plaintiffs’ motion for award of attorneys’ fees and costs,
including partner rates of $795 per hour for Vozzolo LLC, as set forth in ECF No. 79.

In In re Scotts EZ Seed Litig., No. 7:12-cv-4727 (VB), slip op. (ECF No. 367) (S.D.N.Y.
Dec. 19, 2018), the Court approved plaintiffs’ motion for award of attorneys’ fees, costs,
and expenses, including partner rates of $795 per hour for Vozzolo LLC, as set forth in
ECF No. 352, and associate rates of $555-$400, including a specific rate of $450 for Andrea
Clisura, as set forth in ECF No. 351-2.

In Potzner v. Tommie Copper Inc., No. 15 CIV. 3183 (AT), slip op. (ECF No. 129)
(S.D.N.Y. May 4, 2018), the Court approved plaintiffs’ motion for award of attorneys’

fees, costs, and expenses, including partner rates of $795 per hour for Vozzolo LLC, as set
forth in ECF No. 126.

In Rodriguez v. CitiMortgage, Inc., Case No. 11-cv-4718, (S.D.N.Y. Oct. 6, 2015), the
court concluded during the fairness hearing that the 2015 hourly rate of $775.00 for
Antonio Vozzolo was “reasonable.” 10/6/15 Tr. at 14:24-15:14.

The hourly rates among plaintiffs’ counsel and their staff range between
$950 per hour to $165 per hour with the average partner billing rate at
$748. The hourly rates that the partners who performed most of the
partner-level work on the matter, those being Joseph Marchese, Scott
Bursor, Gary Lynch, and Antonio Vozzolo are $680, $850, $650, and
$775 an hour respectively. The total blended rate for all legal work
performed was $609 per hour. ... I conclude that the hourly rates are
reasonable.

10/6/15 Tr. at 14:24-15:14 (emphasis added).

In Astiana v. Kashi Co., Case No. 11-CV-1967-H (BGS), 2014 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 127624
(S.D. Cal. Sept. 2, 2014) the Court approved 2014 partner rates of $875-$675, including a
specific rate of $675 for Antonio Vozzolo, associate rates of $510-$375, including a
specific rate of $450 for Andrea Clisura, paralegal rates of $315-$245 in granting plaintiffs’
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motion for final approval and for award of attorneys’ fees, costs, and incentive awards, as
set forth in ECF No. 229-4.

e In Cox v. Clarus Marketing Group, LLC., 291 F.R.D. 473, 483 (S.D. Cal. 2013) the Court
approved the 2013 hourly rates of class counsel, including 2013 partner rates of $850-$625,
including a specific rate of $650 for Antonio Vozzolo, associate rates of $535-$390,
including a specific rate of $390 for Andrea Clisura, and paralegal rates of $300-$265 (as
set forth in ECF No. 30-5 in Case No. 3:11-cv-02711-H-RBB), stating that “hourly rates
charged by the attorneys appear reasonable in light of the experience of counsel and
complexities of this case.”

o In In re Alexia Foods, Inc. Litigation, Case No. 4:11-cv-06119 PJH, ECF No. 66 (N.D.
Cal. Dec. 12, 2013) the Court approved 2013 partner rates of $875-$650, including a
specific rate of $650 for Antonio Vozzolo, associate rates of $450-$390 in granting

plaintiffs’ motion for final approval and for award of attorneys’ fees, costs, and incentive
awards, as set forth in ECF No. 55-2.

o In Inre Haier Freezer Consumer Litigation, Case No. C 11-02911 EJD, ECF No. 90 (N.D.
Cal. Oct. 25, 2013) the Court approved 2013 hourly partner rates of $850-$645, including
a specific rate of $650 for Antonio Vozzolo, associate rates of $535-$375, including a
specific rate of $390 for Andrea Clisura, and paralegal rates of $265-250 and time in
granting plaintiffs’ motion for final approval and for award of attorneys’ fees, costs, and
incentive awards, as set forth in ECF No. 87-3.

e In Rossiv. Proctor & Gamble Co., No. 11-7238 (JLL), 2013 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 143180, at
*30 (D.N.J. Oct. 3, 2013) the Court found that the 2013 hourly partner rates of $850-$650,
including a specific rate of $650 for Antonio Vozzolo, associate rates of $535-$375,
including a specific rate of $390 for Andrea Clisura, and paralegal rates of $265-235 (as
set forth in ECF No. 76-4) “are based on a reasonable hourly billing rate for such services
given the geographical area, the nature of the services provided and the experience of the
lawyer.”

e In Loreto v. Coast Cutlery Co., Case No. 2:11-cv-03977(D.N.J. Sep. 8, 2011), the Court
approved 2014 partner rates of $875-$675, and a specific rate of $675.00 for Antonio
Vozzolo in granting plaintiffs’ motion for final approval and for award of attorneys’ fees,
costs, and incentive awards, as set forth in ECF No. 56.

e In Landes v. Sony Mobile Communications (U.S.A.), Inc., Case No. 2:17-cv-02264 (ECF
No. 40) (E.D.N.Y. Dec. 1, 2017), the Court approved the 2017 hourly rates for associates
of $525-8575, including the specific rate of $575 for Andrea Clisura, as set forth in ECF
No. 31, as reasonable in granting plaintiffs’ motion for final approval and for award of
attorneys’ fees and expenses.

59. The reasonableness of the Class Counsel’s hourly rates are also supported by

several surveys of legal rates, including the following:
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In an article entitled “Big Law Rates Topping $2,000 Leave Value ‘In Eye of Beholder,””
written by Roy Strom and published by Bloomberg Law on June 9, 2022, the author
describes how Big Law firms have crossed the $2,000-per hour rate. The article also notes
that law firm rates have been increasing by just under 3% per year. A true and correct copy
of this article is attached hereto as Exhibit 5.

The CounselLink Enterprise Management Trends Report for June 2022 states that the
median partner rate in New York was $1,030. The report also notes that median partner
rates have grown by 4.3% in New York. A true and correct copy of this article is attached
hereto as Exhibit 6.

A 2022 Partner Compensation Survey by Major, Lindsey & Africa and Law360 reported
an average billing rate for partners in New York, NY of $1,109. A true and correct copy
of portions of the survey are attached as Exhibit 7.

Wolters Kluwer’s ELM Solutions’s 2018 Real Rate Report reported 2018 median rates for
attorneys in New York, NY of $925 for partners and $588 for associates. The data further
indicated a $955 rate for partners in New York with 21 or more years of experience. A
true and correct copy of portions of the report are attached as Exhibit 8.

In an article entitled “On Sale: The $1,150-Per Hour Lawyer,” written by Jennifer Smith
and published in the Wall Street Journal on April 9, 2013, the author describes the rapidly
growing number of lawyers billing at $1,150 or more revealed in public filings and major
surveys. The article also notes that in the first quarter of 2013, the 50 top-grossing law
firms billed their partners at an average rate between $879 and $882 per hour. A true and
correct copy of this article is attached hereto as Exhibit 9.

In an article published April 16, 2012, the Am Law Daily described the 2012 Real Rate
Report, an analysis of $7.6 billion in legal bills paid by corporations over a five-year period
ending in December 2011. That article illustrates that the top quartile of lawyers bill at an
average of “just under $900 per hour.” A true and correct copy of that article is attached
hereto as Exhibit 10.

Similarly, on February 25, 2011, the Wall Street Journal published an on-line article
entitled “Top Billers.” That article listed the 2010 and/or 2009 hourly rates for more than
125 attorneys, in a variety of practice areas and cases, who charged $1,000 per hour or
more. Indeed, the article specifically lists eleven (11) Gibson Dunn & Crutcher attorneys
billing at $1,000 per hour or more. A true and correct copy of that article is attached hereto
as Exhibit 11.

The National Law Journal’s December 2010, nationwide sampling of law firm billing rates
(attached hereto as Exhibit 12) lists 32 firms whose highest rate was $800 per hour or
more, eleven firms whose highest rate was $900 per hour or more, and three firms whose
highest rate was $1,000 per hour or more.

On December 16, 2009, The American Lawyer published an online article entitled
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“Bankruptcy Rates Top $1,000 in 2008-2009.” In addition to reporting that several

attorneys had charged rates of $1,000 or more in bankruptcy filings in Delaware and the

Southern District of New York, the article also listed 18 firms that charged median partner

rates of from $625 to $980 per hour. A true and correct copy of that article is attached

hereto as Exhibit 13.

e According to the National Law Journal’s 2014 Law Firm Billing Survey, law firms with
their largest office in New York have average partner and associate billing rates of $882
and $520, respectively. Karen Sloan, $1,000 Per Hour Isn’t Rare Anymore; Nominal
Billing Levels Rise, But Discounts Ease Blow, National Law Journal, Jan. 13, 2014. The
survey also shows that it is common for legal fees for partners in New York firms to exceed
$1,000 an hour. /d. A true and correct copy of this survey is attached hereto as Exhibit 14.
60. Class Counsel further petition the Court for incentive awards for each Class

Representative in the amount of $1,500, for their service on behalf of the Class. Any such awards
will also be paid separate and apart from the monetary relief afforded to the Settlement Class.

61.  Class Counsel is of the opinion that Plaintiffs’ interests are aligned with those of
the Class and they have no conflicts of interest. Plaintiffs and each Class Member were injured in
the same manner, and Plaintiffs assert the same legal claims as those of the Class.

62.  Throughout the litigation, Plaintiffs have provided valuable assistance in the
prosecution of this matter and have taken their obligations to the Class seriously by conferring
with their counsel, reviewing the pleadings, and consulting with Class Counsel regarding the
propriety of the Settlement.

63. Class Counsel has significant experience in litigating class actions of similar size,
scope, and complexity to the instant action.

64.  Attached as Exhibit 1 to the Geer Declaration and Exhibit 13 to the Leslie
Declaration are the Firm Resumes of Milberg and Bursor & Fisher, respectively.

65. I and Vozzolo LLC regularly engage in major complex litigation, and have

extensive experience in consumer class action lawsuits that are similar in size, scope, and

complexity to the present case. See Exhibit 2 (Firm Resume of Vozzolo LLC). Prior to creating
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the firm in 2016, I was a partner at Faruqi & Faruqi, LLP (2004-2016), serving in various capacities
including Chair of the firm’s Consumer Litigation Department, and Chair of the firm’s Securities
Litigation Department.

66.  Prior to that, I was an associate at Faruqi & Faruqi, LLP for five (5) years. I
received my Juris Doctor from Brooklyn Law School in 1998.

67. Since 2011, I have served as lead or co-lead counsel in at least 19 putative consumer
class action cases, including:

o Inre: Michaels Stores Pin Pad Litig., Case No. 1:11-CV-03350 CPK (N.D. Ill. June 8,
2011)

o [nre Haier Freezer Consumer Litig., No. C11-02911 (N.D. Cal. Aug. 17, 2011)

e Loretov. Coast Cutlery Co., No. 11-3977 (D.N.J. Sep. 8, 2011)

e Rodriguez v. CitiMortgage, Inc., No. 1:11-cv-04718 (S.D.N.Y. Nov. 14, 2011)

o  Avramv. Samsung Elecs. Am., Inc., No. 11-6973 (D.N.J. Jan 3, 2012)

® Rossiv. Procter & Gamble Co., No. 11-7238 (D.N.J. Jan. 31, 2012)

o Drzielak v. Whirlpool Corp., No. 2:12-cv-0089 (D.N.J. Feb. 21, 2012)

e Joveletal., v. i-Health, Inc., No 1:12-cv-05614 (E.D.N.Y. March 27, 2012)

e Dei Rossi v. Whirlpool Corp., No. 12-125 (E.D. Cal. Apr. 19, 2012)

e [nre Scotts EZ Seed Litig., No. 7:12-cv-4727 (VB) (S.D.N.Y. Sept. 19, 2012)

o Forcellatietal., v Hyland’s, Inc. et al., No. CV 12-1983-GHK (C.D. Cal. Nov. 8, 2012)
e [n re Sinus Buster Prods. Consumer Litig., No. 12-2429 (E.D.N.Y. Dec. 17, 2012)

o [n re 5-Hour ENERGY Mktg. and Sales Practice Litig., No. 13-ml-2438 (C.D. Cal.
Nov. 8, 2013)

e Potznerv. Tommie Copper Inc., et al., No. 7:15-cv-03183 (S.D.N.Y. Jan. 4, 2016)

e [nocencio, et al. v. Telebrands Corp., No. BER-L 4378-16 (N.J. Super. Ct. 2016)
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e Robbins, et al. v. Gencor Nutrients, Inc., et al., No. 16AC-CC00366 (Cir. Ct., Cole
County, Missouri 2016)

e Liptai v. Spectrum Brands Holdings Inc., et al., Case No. 2018CV000321 (Cir. Ct.,
Dane County, Wisconsin 2018)

o Friedv. JPMorgan Chase & Co., et al., No. 2:15-cv-02512 (D.N.J. March 28, 2019)

e Buffington v. Progressive Advanced Insurance Co., No. 20-cv-07408 (S.D.N.Y. Aug.
23,2022).

68. Class Counsel is experienced in the litigation, certification, trial, and settlement of
multi-state consumer class actions like this one, including serving as lead or co-lead counsel in
booster seat litigation against other manufacturers.

69. In particular, certain co-lead Class Counsel has specific experience litigating class
actions against other booster seat manufacturers that involve allegations and false advertising
claims substantially similar to those in this case. For example, Milberg Partner Martha Geer is
serving as court-appointed co-lead counsel in an MDL pending in the District of Massachusetts
involving Evenflo (In re Evenflo Company, Inc. Marketing, Sales Practices & Products Liability
Litigation, MDL No. 20-md-02938-DJC) and in consolidated actions against Graco Children’s
Products filed in the North District of Georgia (Carder, et al. v. Graco Children’s Products, Inc.,
2:20-cv-00137-LMM). Milberg Partners Martha Geer and Jonathan Cohen are also primary
counsel in a class action against Britax Child Safety, Inc. in the District of South Carolina
(Coleman, et al. v. Britax Child Safety, Inc., 0:21-cv-00721-SAL). Accordingly, Class Counsel
has considerable experience handling consumer class actions and are capable of assessing the
strengths and weaknesses of their positions.

70. In negotiating this Settlement, Class Counsel had the benefit of years of relevant
experience and a familiarity with the facts of this case and the substantive law at issue.

71.  Class Counsel have well-regarded practices that are currently litigating dozens of

21



Case 7:21-cv-07933-VB Document 63 Filed 08/28/23 Page 22 of 24

cases in state and federal courts throughout the nation, and they have devoted substantial resources
to representing the Class. Class Counsel regularly engage in complex litigation and have extensive
experience in consumer class actions similar in size, scope, and complexity to this one, including
false advertising and labeling cases.

72.  Bursor & Fisher has also been recognized by courts across the country for its
expertise and skilled and effective representation. EXx. 2; see also Mogull v. Pete and Gerry'’s
Organics, LLC, 2022 WL 4661454, at *2 (S.D.N.Y. Sept. 30, 2022) (Briccetti, J.) (“Bursor &
Fisher ... has represented other plaintiffs in more than one hundred class action lawsuits, including
several consumer class actions that proceeded to jury trials in which Bursor & Fisher achieved
favorable results for the plaintiffs. Thus, Bursor & Fisher has experience in class actions as well
as knowledge of the applicable law in this case.”); Ebin v. Kangadis Food Inc., 297 F.R.D. 561,
566 (S.D.N.Y. Feb. 25, 2014) (Rakoft, J.) (“Bursor & Fisher, P.A., are class action lawyers who
have experience litigating consumer claims ... The firm has been appointed class counsel in dozens
of cases in both federal and state courts, and has won multi-million dollar verdicts or recoveries in
five [now six] class action jury trials since 2008.”).

73. Class Counsel has zealously represented the interests of the Class and committed
substantial resources to the resolution of the class claims.

74. To date, Class Counsel’s work has included:

1. conducting an extensive, pre-suit factual investigation of the Eligible Products
and Defendant’s marketing claims;

11. interviewing numerous interested Class Members, including Plaintiffs,
regarding their purchase of and experience with the Eligible Products;

iii. drafting and serving FIOA requests;
iv. drafting the initial Complaints and Consolidated Amended Complaint;

V. fully briefing a Motion to Dismiss and a Motion to Strike in the Sayers action;
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Vi. holding numerous telephonic calls with defense counsel regarding settlement;
Vi drafting multiple mediation statements, participating in five full-day mediation
sessions with the Honorable Diane Welsh (Ret.) of JAMS on September 30,
2021, November 8, 2021, June 6,2022, August 18,2023, and August 28, 2023;

viil.  successfully moving for Preliminary Approval of the Settlement; and

iX. communicating with the Claims Administrator regarding implementation of
the Notice Plan and addressing any issues with claims administration as they
arise.
75.  Based on Class Counsel’s experience litigating similar consumer class actions, and

taking into consideration the risks of continued litigation, including appeals, versus the substantial
and concrete benefits to Class Members, Class Counsel is of the opinion that the Settlement is not
only fair, reasonable, and adequate, but also a very favorable result for the Settlement Class.

76.  As discussed above and throughout Plaintiffs’ Motion for Final Approval of Class
Action Settlement, the Settlement reached in this case was the product of negotiations conducted
at arms’ length by experienced counsel representing adversarial parties, and there is absolutely no
evidence of fraud or collusion. Accordingly, I believe the proposed Settlement is in the best
interest of the Class and merits final approval by this Court.

77. I am of the opinion that each Plaintiff’s active involvement in this case was critical
to its ultimate resolution. They took their roles as class representatives seriously, devoting
significant amounts of time and effort to protecting the interests of the class. Without their
willingness to assume the risks and responsibilities of serving as class representatives, I do not
believe such a strong result could have been achieved.

78. In particular, Plaintiffs equipped Class Counsel with critical details regarding their
purchases from and experiences with Defendant’s Products. They assisted Class Counsel in

investigating their claims, detailed their experiences as users of the Products, supplied supporting
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documentation, aided in drafting the Complaints, and frequently communicated with Class
Counsel regarding settlement negotiations and strategy. Plaintiffs were prepared to testify at
deposition and trial, if necessary. And they were actively consulted during the settlement process.

79.  In short, each Plaintiff assisted Class Counsel in pursuing this action on behalf of

the class, and their involvement in this case has been nothing short of essential.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed on

August 28, 2023 in New City, New York.

/s/ Antonio Vozzolo
Antonio Vozzolo
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VOZZOLO LLC
345 Route 17 South Telephone: 201-630-8820 499 Route 304
Upper Saddle River, NJ 07458 Facsimile: 201-604-8400 New City, NY 10956
FIRM RESUME

Vozzolo LLC is a civil litigation firm with offices in New York and New Jersey. The firm
focuses on complex litigation, including consumer protection class actions, as well as securities and
shareholder derivative litigation. The firm litigates cases throughout the country, including both
federal and state courts. The firm’s attorneys are experienced in, and thoroughly familiar with, all
aspects of class action litigation, including the underlying substantive law, the substance and procedure
of class certification, and trial. In numerous high-profile matters, Vozzolo LLC’s founder, Antonio
Vozzolo, has played a principal or lead role establishing new law, obtaining groundbreaking rulings
and securing substantial recoveries for his clients.

ANTONIO VOZZOLO

Antonio Vozzolo is a civil litigator and trial lawyer who focuses on complex litigation, class
actions and consumer protection. Before creating the firm in 2016, Mr. Vozzolo was a partner at
Faruqi & Faruqi, LLP, one of the country’s leading securities litigation firms, serving in various
capacities including: Chair of the firm’s Consumer Litigation Department, and Chair of the firm’s
Securities Litigation Department. There, he represented aggrieved individuals, consumers and
investors in a wide variety of contexts, including consumer protection and securities litigation, as well
as shareholder derivative, merger and transactional litigation. Over his 20-year career, Mr. Vozzolo
has recovered hundreds of millions of dollars and other significant remedial benefits on behalf of
consumers and investors.

In Fried v. JPMorgan Chase & Co., et al., No. 2:15-cv-02512 (D.N.J. April 8, 2015), Vozzolo
LLC represented a nationwide class of customers of defendant arising out of the improper collection

of Private Mortgage Insurance (“PMI”) on residential mortgage transactions in violation of the
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Homeowners Protection Act of 1998, 12 U.S.C. § 4901 (“HPA”). A settlement was obtained,
providing class members with a total benefit valued at $19.5 million in monetary and injunctive relief.

In Bates v. Kashi Co., et al., Case No. 11-CV-1967-H BGS (S.D. Cal. 2011), Mr. Vozzolo
served as co-lead counsel, securing a $5.0 million settlement fund on behalf of California consumers
who purchased Kashi products that were deceptively labeled as “nothing artificial” and “all
natural.” The settlement provided class members with a full refund of the purchase price in addition
to requiring Kashi to modify its labeling and advertising to remove “All Natural” and “Nothing
Artificial” from certain products. As noted by Judge Marilyn L. Huff in approving the settlement,
“Plaintiffs’ counsel has extensive experience acting as class counsel in consumer class action cases,
including cases involving false advertising claims.”

Moreover, in Thomas v. Global Vision Products, Case No. RG-03091195 (California Superior
Ct., Alameda Cty.), Mr. Vozzolo served as co-lead counsel in a consumer class action lawsuit against
Global Vision Products, Inc., the manufacturer of the Avacor hair restoration product and its officers,
directors and spokespersons, in connection with the false and misleading advertising claims regarding
the Avacor product. Though the company had declared bankruptcy in 2007, Mr. Vozzolo, along with
his co-counsel, successfully prosecuted two trials to obtain relief for the class of Avacor purchasers. In
January 2008, a jury in the first trial returned a verdict of almost $37 million against two of the creators
of the product. In November 2009, another jury awarded plaintiff and the class more than $50 million
in a separate trial against two other company directors and officers. This jury award represented the
largest consumer class action jury award in California in 2009 (according to VerdictSearch, a legal
trade publication).

In In re Purchase Pro Inc. Securities Litig., Master File No. CV-S-01-0483-JLQ (D. Nev.
2001), Mr. Vozzolo served as co-lead counsel for the class, securing a $24.2 million settlement fund

in a case involving federal securities fraud litigation. As noted by Senior Judge Justin L. Quackenbush

VOZZOLO LLC
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in approving the settlement, “I feel that counsel for plaintiffs evidenced that they were and are skilled
in the field of securities litigation.”

More recently, in Jovel v. I-Health, Inc., Case No. 12-CV-5614 MDG (E.D.N.Y. 2012), Mr.
Vozzolo served as counsel in a consumer class action challenging the marketing of certain brain health
supplements. A settlement was obtained, providing class members with a cash refund of up to the
actual purchase price. As noted by Judge Marilyn D. Go in approving the settlement, “Mr. Vozzolo
[and co-lead counsel] are attorneys with substantial experience litigating consumer class action, and
are associated with firms specializing in class actions.” Similarly, in Potzner v. Tommie Copper Inc.,
etal.,No. 7:15-cv-03183 (S.D.N.Y. Jan. 4, 2016), Judge Analisa Torres noted that “plaintiffs’ counsel
has substantial experience in successfully litigating consumer class actions.”

Below is a non-exhaustive list of settlements where Mr. Vozzolo served as lead or co-
lead counsel:

o Fried v. JPMorgan Chase & Co., et al., No. 2:15-cv-02512 (D.N.J. April 8, 2015).
Vozzolo LLC represented a nationwide class of customers of defendant arising out of the
improper collection of Private Mortgage Insurance (“PMI”) on residential mortgage
transactions. A settlement was obtained, providing class members with a settlement valued
at $19.5 million in monetary and injunctive relief.

e Liptai v. Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc., et al., No. 2018cv000321 (Dane County, WI
2018). Vozzolo LLC represented a nationwide class of purchasers of defendants’ small
kitchen appliances. A settlement was obtained, providing class members with a cash

refunds of up to $4.00.

® Robbins, et al. v. Gencor Nutrients, Inc., et al., No. 16 AC-CC00366 (Cir. Ct. Cole County,
Missouri 2016). Vozzolo LLC represented a nationwide class of purchasers of defendants’
testosterone boosting supplements. A settlement was obtained, providing class members
with a cash refunds of up to $14.52.

e Potzner v. Tommie Copper Inc., et al., No. 7:15-cv-03183 (S.D.N.Y. Jan. 4, 2016).
Vozzolo LLC represented a nationwide class of purchasers of defendants’ “copper-
infused” or “zinc-infused” compression apparel. A settlement fund was obtained,

providing class members with a cash refunds of up to $10.00.

e [nocencio, et al. v. Telebrands Corp., No. BER-L 4378-16 (N.J. Super. Ct. 2016). Vozzolo
LLC represented a proposed nationwide class of consumers who purchased certain “Pocket

VOZZOLO LLC
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Hose” brand of expandable garden hoses. A settlement was obtained, providing full relief
to class members, including cash refunds of up to $50.00.

o Forcellati et al., v Hyland’s, Inc. et al., No. CV 12-1983-GHK (C.D. Cal. Nov. 8, 2012).
Mr. Vozzolo represented a certified nationwide class of purchasers of children’s
homeopathic cold and flu remedies. A settlement was obtained, providing class members
with cash refunds of up to the full purchase price.

e Dei Rossi v. Whirlpool Corp., No. 12-125 (E.D. Cal. Apr. 19, 2012). Mr. Vozzolo
represented a certified class of consumers who purchased certain KitchenAid refrigerators
marketed as Energy Star qualified when they were not. A settlement was obtained,
providing class members with cash payments of $55.00 to recoup the excess energy costs
of their appliances.

o [n re Sinus Buster Products Consumer Litig., Case No. 1:12-cv-02429-ADS-AKT
(E.D.N.Y. 2012). Mr. Vozzolo represented a nationwide class of purchasers of assorted
cold, flu and sinus products. A settlement was obtained, providing class members with a
cash refund up to $10.00 and requiring defendant to discontinue the marketing and sale of
certain products.

e In Rodriguez v. Citimortgage, Inc., Case No. 11-cv-4718-PGG (S.D.N.Y. 2015). Mr.
Vozzolo represented a nationwide class military servicemembers related to foreclosure
violations of the Servicemembers Civil Relief Act. A $38 million class settlement was
obtained, where each class member was entitled to $116,785 plus lost equity in the
foreclosed property and interest thereon.

o In re: Haier Freezer Consumer Litig., Case No. 5:11-CV-02911-EJD (N.D. Cal.
2011). Mr. Vozzolo represented a nationwide class of consumers who purchased certain
model freezers, which were sold in violation of the federal standard for maximum energy
consumption. A settlement was obtained, valued at $4 million, providing class members
with cash payments of between $50.00 and $325.80.

e Loreto v. Coast Cutlery Co., Case No. 11-3977 SDW-MCA (D.N.J. 2011). Mr. Vozzolo
represented a proposed nationwide class of people who purchased stainless steel knives
and multi-tools that were of a lesser quality than advertised. A settlement was obtained,
providing class members with a full refund of the purchase price.

® Rossi v Procter & Gamble Company., Case No. 11-7238 (D.N.J. 2011). Mr. Vozzolo
represented a nationwide class of consumers who purchased deceptively marketed “Crest
Sensitivity” toothpaste. A settlement was obtained, providing class members with a full
refund of the purchase price.

e Inre: Michaels Stores Pin Pad Litig., Case No. 1:11-CV-03350 CPK (N.D. Ill. 2011). Mr.
Vozzolo represented a nationwide class of persons against Michaels Stores, Inc. for failing
to secure and safeguard customers’ personal financial data. A settlement was obtained,
which provided class members with monetary relief for unreimbursed out-of-pocket losses

VOZZOLO LLC
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incurred in connection with the data breach, as well as up to four years of credit monitoring
services.

In re: HP Power-Plug Litigation, Case No. 06-1221 (N.D. Cal. 2006). Mr. Vozzolo
represented a proposed nationwide class of consumers who purchased defective laptops
manufactured by defendant. A settlement was obtained, which provided full relief to class
members, including, among other benefits, a cash payment of up to $650.00 per class
member, or in the alternative, a repair free-of-charge and new limited warranties
accompanying repaired laptops.

Delre v. Hewlett-Packard Co., C.A. No. 3232-02 (N.J. Super. Ct. 2002). Mr. Vozzolo
represented a proposed nationwide class of consumers (approximately 170,000 members)
who purchased, HP dvd-100i dvd-writers (“HP 100i”) based on misrepresentations
regarding the write-once (“DVD+R”) capabilities of the HP 1001 and the compatibility of
DVD+RW disks written by HP 1001 with DVD players and other optical storage
devices. A settlement was obtained, which provided full relief to class members, including
among other benefits, the replacement of the defective HP 100i with its more current,
second generation DVD writer, the HP 200i, and/or refunds of the $99.00 it had charged
some consumers to upgrade from the HP 1001 to the HP 200i prior to the settlement.

In addition, Mr. Vozzolo, has considerable leadership experience in complex litigation, serving

as lead or co-lead counsel in at least 19 putative consumer class action cases since 2011, including:

In re: Michaels Stores Pin Pad Litig., Case No. 1:11-CV-03350 CPK (N.D. Ill. June 8,
2011)

In re Haier Freezer Consumer Litig., No. C11-02911 (N.D. Cal. Aug. 17, 2011)
Loreto v. Coast Cutlery Co., No. 11-3977 (D.N.J. Sep. 8, 2011)

Astiana v. Kashi Co., No. 3:11-cv-01967-H BGS (S.D. Cal. Sept. 28, 2011)
Rodriguez v. CitiMortgage, Inc., No. 1:11-cv-04718 (S.D.N.Y. Nov. 14, 2011)
Avram v. Samsung Elecs. Am., Inc., No. 11-6973 (D.N.J. Jan 3, 2012)

Rossi v. Procter & Gamble Co., No. 11-7238 (D.N.J. Jan. 31, 2012)

Dzielak v. Whirlpool Corp., No. 2:12-cv-0089 (D.N.J. Feb. 21, 2012)

Dei Rossi v. Whirlpool Corp., No. 12-125 (E.D. Cal. Apr. 19, 2012)

In re Scotts EZ Seed Litig., No. 7:12-cv-4727 (VB) (S.D.N.Y. Sept. 19, 2012)

Forcellati et al., v Hyland’s, Inc. et al., No. CV 12-1983-GHK (C.D. Cal. Nov. 8, 2012)
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In re Sinus Buster Prods. Consumer Litig., No. 12-2429 (E.D.N.Y. Dec. 17, 2012)

In re 5-Hour ENERGY Mktg. and Sales Practice Litig., No. 13-m1-2438 (C.D. Cal. Nov.
8,2013)

Fried v. JPMorgan Chase & Co., et al., No. 2:15-cv-02512 (D.N.J. April 8, 2015)
Potzner v. Tommie Copper Inc., et al., No. 7:15-cv-03183 (S.D.N.Y. April 22, 2015)
Inocencio, et al. v. Telebrands Corp., No. BER-L 4378-16 (N.J. Super. Ct. 2016)

Robbins, et al. v. Gencor Nutrients, Inc., et al., No. 16 AC-CC00366 (Cir. Ct. Cole County,
Missouri 2016)

Liptai v. Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc., et al., No. 2018cv000321 (Dane County, WI
2018).

Buffington v. Progressive Advanced Insurance Co., No. 20-cv-07408 (S.D.N.Y. Aug.
23,2022)

Mr. Vozzolo is also experienced in the substance and procedure of class certification, obtaining

class certification in the following contested consumer class actions:

Buffington v. Progressive Advanced Insurance Co., No. 20-cv-07408 (S.D.N.Y. Aug.
23,2022)

Dei Rossi v. Whirlpool Corp., No. 2:12-cv-125 (E.D. Cal. Apr. 28, 2015)

Forcellati v. Hyland’s, Inc., No. CV 2:12-cv-1983-GHK (C.D. Cal. Apr. 9, 2014)

In re Scotts EZ Seed Litig., No. 7:12-cv-04727 (S.D.N.Y. Jan. 26, 2015)

Astiana v. Kashi Co., No. 3:11-cv-01967-H BGS (S.D. Cal. July 30, 2013)

Drzielak v. Whirlpool Corp., et al., No. 12-CIV-0089 SRC-MAS (D.N.J. Feb. 12, 2012)

Thomas v. Global Vision Products, Inc., et al., No. RG03-091195 (Cal. Super. Ct.
Alameda Cnty. 2003)

In recognition of his outstanding work on behalf of clients, Mr. Vozzolo has been regularly

sought out to comment on important consumer protection matters. For example, Mr. Vozzolo was

quoted in a New York Times article related to recent proposed legislation attempting to ban consumer
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class actions related to the Energy Star program. Matthew L. Wald, Whirlpool Wants Congress to
Ban Class-Action Suits Tied to Energy Star Program, Energy & Environment,

NY TIMES, July 20, 2014, available at http://www.nytimes.com/2014/07/21/business/energy-
environment/whirlpool-wants-congress-to-ban-class-action-suits-tied-to-energy-star-program.html.
More recently, Mr. Vozzolo was invited to participate in the September 21, 2015 Federal Trade
Commission Panel on Homeopathic Medicine & Advertising to discuss the legal and regulatory
implications of the advertising and marketing claims made by manufacturers of homeopathic
products.!

Mr. Vozzolo graduated, cum laude, from Fairleigh Dickinson University in 1992 with a
Bachelor of Science (B.Sc.), where he was on the Dean’s List, and with a Masters in Business
Administration (M.B.A.) in 1995. He is a graduate of Brooklyn Law School (1998). Mr. Vozzolo
served as an intern to the Honorable Ira Gammerman of the New York Supreme Court and the New
York Stock Exchange while attending law school.

He is a member of the bars of the State of New York, the State of New Jersey, the United States
District Court for the District of New Jersey, the United States District Court for the Southern District
of New York, the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York, the United States
Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit, the United States Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit, the
United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, and the United States Court of Appeals for the

Eleventh Circuit.

! See https://www.ftc.gov/system/files/documents/videos/homeopathic-medicine-advertising-part-
2/ftc_homeopathic_medicine_and advertising workshop - transcript segment 2.pdf.
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ATTORNEY PROFILE-OF COUNSEL & ASSOCIATES

ANDREA CLISURA (Associate)

Andrea Clisura is experienced in complex litigation, commercial litigation, civil rights
litigation, and consumer protection class action litigation. Prior to joining Vozzolo LLC, Ms. Clisura
was a Staff Attorney for Disability Rights New York (“DRNY™), the Protection and Advocacy system
in the State of New York. At DRNY, she represented clients with intellectual and developmental
disabilities fighting discriminatory practices, including through putative class action litigation. She
was lead attorney for DRNY in Disability Rights New York, et al. v. The State of New York, et al.,
Case No. 17-cv-6965 (E.D.N.Y.), ongoing litigation asserting claims against the New York State
Office for People with Developmental Disabilities for the failure to timely transition hundreds of
former students from residential schools throughout New York and in neighboring states into
community placements. She also represented a client in an action to terminate the restrictive
guardianship of her person and property under Article 17-A of the New York Surrogate’s Court
Procedure Act, a case which went to trial in Nassau County Surrogate’s Court and subsequently
settled.

Previously, Ms. Clisura was an associate at boutique law firms in New York focusing on
consumer class action litigation. As an associate at Levi & Korsinsky, LLP, Ms. Clisura identified and
developed claims against Sony Mobile Communications (U.S.A.), Inc. and Sony Electronics, Inc. for
deceptive advertising of Xperia smartphones and tablets as “waterproof.” The action was settled on
behalf of a nationwide class and resulted in relief for consumers, including warranty extensions,
changes to marketing materials, and individual monetary relief ranging from $250 to $340. Landes,
et al. v. Sony Mobile Communications (U.S.A.), Inc., et al., Case No. 17-cv-2264 (E.D.N.Y. Dec. 1,
2017). She also worked as part of the teams leading multi-district litigation in In Re: Intel Corp. CPU

Marketing, Sales Practices and Products Liability Litigation, 3:18-md-2828-SI, MDL No. 2828 (D.
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Oregon), relating to certain security vulnerabilities in Intel Corporation’s microprocessors, and /n Re:
100% Grated Parmesan Cheese Marketing and Sales Practices Litigation, Case No. 16-cv-5802,
MDL No. 2705 (N.D. I11.), consolidating multiple class-action lawsuits alleging various manufacturers
misleadingly market their products as “100%” grated parmesan cheese. At Faruqi & Faruqi, LLP, in
a contested class action, Ms. Clisura was part of a team of attorneys that achieved nationwide
certification of a class of purchasers of children’s homeopathic cold and flu remedies in Forcellati et
al., v Hyland’s, Inc. et al., No. 12-cv-1983-GHK (C.D. Cal. Nov. 8, 2012). Ultimately, a settlement
was obtained, providing class members with cash refunds of up to the full purchase price of the
products. Ms. Clisura was also part of the team in Dei Rossi v. Whirlpool Corp., No. 12-125 (E.D.
Cal. Apr. 19, 2012), which won a contested motion for class certification of a class of consumers who
purchased certain KitchenAid refrigerators marketed as Energy Star qualified when they were not. A
settlement was obtained, providing class members with cash payments of $55.00 to recoup the excess
energy costs of their appliances.

Ms. Clisura is a member of the State Bars of New York and New Jersey and a member of the
bars of the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York, the United States
District Court for the Eastern District of New York, and the United States District Court for the District
of New Jersey. Ms. Clisura received her Juris Doctor from Brooklyn Law School, magna cum laude
(2011). While attending Brooklyn Law School, Ms. Clisura served as an Associate Managing Editor
of the Journal of Law and Policy and was a member of the Moot Court Honor Society, Appellate
Advocacy Division. Her note, “None of Their Business: The Need for Another Alternative to New
York’s Bail Bond Business,” was published in Brooklyn Law School’s Journal of Law and Policy.
Ms. Clisura also gained experience in law school as an intern to the Honorable David G. Trager of the
U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of New York and as a summer law intern with the U.S.

Department of Justice, Antitrust Division, and a New York Legal Services office engaged in
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foreclosure defense. Ms. Clisura earned a Bachelor of Arts in Metropolitan Studies and Sociology

from New York University, magna cum laude (2005).
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Jimenez v. Artsana

VOZZOLO LLC

8/28/2023 SUMMARY TIME REPORT

PROFESSIONAL* HOURS RATE LODESTAR
Antonio Vozzolo (P) 295.90 $900 $266,310.00
Andrea Clisura (A) 321.70 $650 $209,105.00
TOTALS 617.60 $475,415.00
Partner (P)
Of Counsel (OC)
Associate (A)
Paralegal (PL)
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VOZZOLO LLC
Detailed Time Diaries
\
Reportin Period: Dec 2020-Au ust 2023
Case Pro essional
Date Matter Name | Time eeper Description ours
Review initial documents received from A. Vozzolo (.4);
begin fact research re draft complaint, incl read
6/15/2021 |Artsana A Clisura Congressional Report & related articles (.8) 1.20
Revise/edit draft complaint (1.9); rev related documents
6/16/2021 |Artsana A Clisura (.6); factual research, incl save related images (2.2) 4.70
Factual research, incl rev social media and save marketing
6/17/2021 |Artsana A Clisura images (3.5) 3.50
Revise/edit draft complaint (6.9); factual research re
6/18/2021 |Artsana A Clisura additional products, GoFit product (.4) 7.30
6/19/2021 |Artsana A Clisura Finish and send revised complaint to A Vozzolo. 0.20
Emails from A Vozzolo re Artsana complaint and related
matter (.1); review draft complaint from co-counsel along
with previous drafts and begin mark-up of same (2.3);
review orders on MTD in related matters (.9); comms w AV
9/13/2021 |Artsana A Clisura re draft (.2) 3.50
Revisions to complaint w focus on factual background and
9/14/2021 |Artsana A Clisura conduct factual research re same 5.00
Complete revisions to complaint draft and email to A
9/15/2021 |Artsana A Clisura Vozzolo 1.40
Rev letter from state AGs to NHTSA (.3); rev df's
10/4/2021 |Artsana A Clisura mediation s/m (.5); rev pls' mediation s/m (.4) 1.20
Discuss status of mediation w A Vozzolo (.2); discuss
letter proposing injunctive relief with A Vozzolo (.1); review
and begin revising letter proposing injuctive relief for class
10/5/2021 |Artsana A Clisura (2) 2.30
Complete review and revisions of letter proposing
10/6/2021 |Artsana A Clisura injunctive relief and send same to A Vozzolo 1.40
Review various videos and marketing materials and draft
proposal for new eductional videos as part of injunctive
11/18/2021 |Artsana A Clisura relief 2.80
Rev email from A Vozzolo re potential settlement strategy,
12/1/2021 |Artsana A Clisura approaches (.1); call w A Vozzolo re same (.1) 0.20
Begin research and drafting memo re claims made
12/2/2021 |Artsana A Clisura settlements, incl research re 3d cir 4.00
Con't. research and drafting memo re claims made
12/3/2021 |Artsana A Clisura settlements in 3d circuit 2.40
Rev materials re settlements in 2d Cir. in shared folder
and notes re same (2.4); con't drafting memo in
12/4/2021 |Artsana A Clisura connection w research (3.5) 5.90
Con't rev of materials in shared folder re 2d Cir and write-
up re same (3.8); con't drafting and legal research for
12/5/2021 |Artsana A Clisura memo re settlement in 2d Cir (2) 5.80
Research settlements, review transcript re 2d Cir (.5); rev
notes and draft reseach summary (.3); con't Lexis
research re claims-made settlements and drafting memo
12/6/2021 |Artsana A Clisura in connection w same (7.8) 8.60
Con't Lexis research re claims made settlements (3.3);
revisions to draft memo and send same to A Vozzolo (3.6);
12/7/2021 |Artsana A Clisura call w A Vozzolo re same (.2) 7.10
Review and write up re various fairness hearings in 2d Cir.
12/9/2021 |[Artsana A Clisura (2.3); Lexis research (.2) 2.50

Time
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VOZZOLO LLC

Detailed Time Diaries

Reportin Period: Dec 2

020-Au ust 2023

Case
Date Matter Name

12/10/2021 |Artsana

Pro essional
Time eeper

A Clisura

Description
Con't Lexis research re claims made settlements (3.6);
revisions to draft memo in connection w same (2.5); pull
relevant documents off of PACER (.4); review materials
from PACER and update memo in connection w same
(2.8)

ours

9.30

12/11/2021 |Artsana

A Clisura

Review and clean up memo re claims-made settlements,
analysis of 2d Cir. and send same to A Vozzolo

0.60

12/15/2021 |Artsana

A Clisura

Call w A Vozzolo re educational videos and additions to
company's website (.2); review website and emails in
connection w same (.1)

0.30

12/17/2021 |Artsana

A Clisura

Call w A Vozzolo re draft letter re proposal for educational
videos for injunctive relief (.1); revise letter regarding same
and send proposed edits to A Vozzolo (1.4)

1.50

1/19/2022 |Artsana

A Clisura

Organize files in case folder

0.40

1/20/2022 |Artsana

A Clisura

Review emails w co-counsel re settlement, notice, and
respond re same

0.20

1/25/2022 |Artsana

A Clisura

Review and organize documents and communications re
mediation (.8); call w co-counsel re notice plan and related
issues (.5); call w A Vozzolo re same (.1)

1.40

1/26/2022 |Artsana

A Clisura

Review letters from oppo counsel in connection w
settlement negotiations

0.20

2/3/2022 |Artsana

A Clisura

Review corr from oppo counsel and notes re same (.5);
rev proposal re injunctive relief (.2); rev videos on website
and social media (.2); rev email from A Vozzolo with comm
re injunctive relief and respond re same (.3)

1.20

2/15/2022 |Artsana

A Clisura

Rev notes and comms in prep for call (.3); conf call re
settlement negotiations (.6)

0.90

3/11/2022 |Artsana

A Clisura

Call w A Vozzolo re draft settlement agreement (.2); rev
and analyze documents re recent class settlement in
SDNY action, incl concerns from state attys general (.9)
and objections and related documents from recetn SDNY
settlement and summarize notes re same (2.3); rev emails
from A Vozzolo re inunctive relief negotiations (.3); begin
review of draft settlement agreement (1.8)

5.50

3/14/2022 |Artsana

A Clisura

Call w A Vozzolo re edits to draft settlement agreement
(.3); continue reviewing and revising draft settlement, incl
provisions re injunctive relief (6.6)

6.90

3/15/2022 |Artsana

A Clisura

Review Angeion notice proposal and notes re same (.9);
review JND notice proposal and notes re same (.8); review
KCC notice proposal and notes re same (1.1); rev notes
from conf call w co-counsel re notice issues (.2); analyze
differences in proposals and draft email to A Vozzolo re
same (1.8); call w A Vozzolo re notice plan (.1); focus
revise notice provisions in draft settlement agmt and email
same to A Vozzolo (2.4)

7.30

3/21/2022 |Artsana

A Clisura

Review redline from A Vozzolo re draft settlement and
email re same

0.50

3/22/2022 |Artsana

A Clisura

Rev comments and redline from J Cohen re settlement
agmt (.3); rev comments from T Fisher re settlement (.1)

0.40

Time
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VOZZOLO LLC
Detailed Time Diaries
\
Reportin Period: Dec 2020-Au ust 2023
Case Pro essional
Date Matter Name | Time eeper Description ours

4/22/2022 |Artsana A Clisura Rev emails re open issues re settlement 0.10
Call w A Vozzolo re status of settlement discussions (.1);

4/29/2022 |Artsana A Clisura rev emails amongst co-counsel (.2) 0.30
Call w A Vozzolo re anticipated research issues relating to

5/3/2022 |Artsana A Clisura settlement 0.10
Call w A Vozzolo re research issues relating to settlement

5/4/2022 |Artsana A Clisura (.3); research re various settlement issues (3.4) 3.70
Calls a A Vozzolo re research issues relating to settlement
(.6); conf call w co-counsel re open settlement issues (.9);
review and edit latest draft of settlement agreement and
insert comments re same (.6); research re various

5/5/2022 |Artsana A Clisura settlement issues (5.1) 7.20
Call w A Vozzolo re research issues relating to settlement
(.3); research re various setlement issues (3.3); rev and
edits to latest version of agreement (.7); rev email from A

5/6/2022 |Artsana A Clisura Vozzolo outlining remaining issues (.1) 4.40

5/9/2022 |Artsana